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NOVEMBER 19, 2019 
Alan Childer’s 
Cannon & Cannon Inc. 
8550 Kingston Pike 
Knoxville, TN 37919 

RE: UPSCALE WORLD’S FAIR PARK HOTEL (12-H-19-UR) 
Dear Mr. Childer’s, 

The Traffic Impact Letter (TIL) received on October 28, 2019 was submitted for the above referenced 

development and has been reviewed by staff from the City of Knoxville and Knoxville-Knox County 

Planning. We have identified the following issues related to the TIL that need to be further addressed or 

corrected.  

1 The site plan shows two access points, but the TIS was analyzed with one access point. Please 

address this throughout the study.  

2 The site plan shows 120 rooms, but the TIS is more conservative by proposing 150 rooms. This is 

okay, but we just wanted to make sure you were aware.  

3 On page 3 (Figure 2), please show an updated site plan.  

4 Figure 4 (pg 6), Figure 5 (pg 8), and Figure 8 (pg 13) do not match their corresponding Appendix 

sheets.  

5 With the high pedestrian activity within this area, you are allowed to add a transit reduction of 

10% and a pedestrian reduction around 5%, in compliance with the ITE Trip Generation Handbook.  

6 In Figure 6 (pg 10), it shows only vehicular trip distribution. Please show and discuss the pedestrian 

distribution for this area. How will high pedestrian movements be accommodated? Is the cycle 
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length long enough for the future condition? Or will certain movements need to be modified to 

accommodate the pedestrian movements? 

7 How is transit being accommodated? With transit having a decent trip generator with the location 

of this site, this mode does not seem to be discussed a lot.  

8 Please add sight distance evaluation for NB 12th Street, NB right-turn lane 11th St, & EB Clinch 

Avenue, and the visibility of pedestrians at the garage exit. A gate and extra signage will probably 

be required by City Engineering.  

9 Please discuss the following: limiting lane closures as required by City of Knoxville Traffic Office 

for the construction of the proposed development, Construction delivery and routing plan, and a 

material staging plan. The City of Knoxville Traffic Office will need to be consulted as to what they 

will allow prior to submitting a revised TIS.  

Please provide a PDF and four (4) hard-copies of the following: a signed and sealed letter addressing 

these concerns in a comment response sheet (with the indication of where/how the comments were 

addressed) attached to the back of a fully revised TIS. Revisions are due no later than Monday, November 

25, 2019. If you have any questions, please contact me at 865-215-3826.  

Sincerely, 

 

Tarren Barrett, EIT 
Knoxville-Knox County Planning 
 
 
C: Mike Reynolds, AICP, Knoxville-Knox County Planning 
 Mike Conger, PE, Knoxville-Knox County Planning 
 Curtis Williams, PE, City of Knoxville Engineering 
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 Evan Hoffman, City of Knoxville Traffic Office 
 Shawn Garner, City of Knoxville Traffic Office 
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DECEMBER 10, 2019 
Alan Childer’s 
Cannon & Cannon Inc. 
8550 Kingston Pike 
Knoxville, TN 37919 

RE: UPSCALE WORLD’S FAIR PARK HOTEL (12-H-19-UR) 
Dear Mr. Childer’s, 

The Traffic Impact Letter (TIL) received on October 28, 2019 was submitted for the above referenced 

development and has been reviewed by staff from the City of Knoxville and Knoxville-Knox County 

Planning. We have identified the following issues related to the TIL that need to be further addressed or 

corrected.  

1 The site plan shows two access points, but the TIS was analyzed with one access point. Please 

address this throughout the study.  

2 The site plan shows 120 rooms, but the TIS is more conservative by proposing 150 rooms. This is 

okay, but we just wanted to make sure you were aware.  

3 On page 3 (Figure 2), please show an updated site plan.  

4 Figure 4 (pg 6), Figure 5 (pg 8), and Figure 8 (pg 13) do not match their corresponding Appendix 

sheets.  

5 With the high pedestrian activity within this area, you are allowed to add a transit reduction of 

10% and a pedestrian reduction around 5%, in compliance with the ITE Trip Generation Handbook.  

6 In Figure 6 (pg 10), it shows only vehicular trip distribution. Please show and discuss the pedestrian 

distribution for this area. How will high pedestrian movements be accommodated? Is the cycle 
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length long enough for the future condition? Or will certain movements need to be modified to 

accommodate the pedestrian movements? [CCI Response: The requested information has been 

incorporated into the report.] Planning Response: Where is this located? Please list the page and 

paragraph. 

7 How is transit being accommodated? With transit having a decent trip generator with the location 

of this site, this mode does not seem to be discussed a lot. [CCI Response: The second site 

entrance is designed to be primarily used for entering transit vehicles (Uber, Lyft, etc.). Associated 

discussion included in the Conclusion and Recommendations section of the report.] Planning 

Response: Please change the use of transit vehicles in this context throughout the report. Uber, 

Lyft, etc. are more like ride-share or shared mobility vehicles. Also, please state on the comment 

response sheet how the main entrance is set-up (i.e. exit only or entrance/exit). It is not clear in 

the report.  

8 Please add sight distance evaluation for NB 12th Street, NB right-turn lane 11th St, & EB Clinch 

Avenue, and the visibility of pedestrians at the garage exit. A gate and extra signage will probably 

be required by City Engineering.  

9 Please discuss the following: limiting lane closures as required by City of Knoxville Traffic Office 

for the construction of the proposed development, Construction delivery and routing plan, and a 

material staging plan. The City of Knoxville Traffic Office will need to be consulted as to what they 

will allow prior to submitting a revised TIS.  

10 Look at renumbering the recommendations on page 16.  

Please provide a PDF of the following: a signed and sealed letter addressing these concerns in a comment 

response sheet (with the indication of where/how the comments were addressed) attached to the back 

of a fully revised TIS. Revisions are due no later than Thursday, December 12, 2019. If you have any 

questions, please contact me at 865-215-3826.  
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Sincerely, 

 

Tarren Barrett, EIT 
Knoxville-Knox County Planning 
 
 
C: Mike Reynolds, AICP, Knoxville-Knox County Planning 
 Mike Conger, PE, Knoxville-Knox County Planning 
 Curtis Williams, PE, City of Knoxville Engineering 
 Evan Hoffman, City of Knoxville Traffic Office 
 Shawn Garner, City of Knoxville Traffic Office 
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10. Look at renumbering the recommendations on page 16. 
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